Open Agenda

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission
Tuesday 1 February 2022
7.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH
Membership

Reserves

Councillor Peter Babudu (Chair)
Councillor William Houngbo (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Michael Situ
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted member)
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer (Co-opted member)
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted member)
Mannah Kargbo (Co-opted member)

Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor James Coldwell
Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor James McAsh
Councillor Sirajul Islam

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children,
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at
the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web
site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Amit Alva on email: amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 24 January 2022

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission
Tuesday 1 February 2022
7.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business
Item No.

Title

PART A OPEN BUSINESS
1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT
In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting.

3.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS
Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

4.

MINUTES
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
16 November 2021 (To follow) and 20 April 2021 (To follow).

Page No.

Item No.

5.

Title

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND)

Page No.

1 - 38

To hear from Shenice parent of a child with Special Educational
Needs and Disabilities (SEND).
To hear from Yvonne Ely, Head of SEN & Inclusion on the Journey
map through SEND- Education and Health Care Plan, starting
primary and secondary schools through SEND.
To review officer responses to questions on SEND processes,
raised at the previous commission meeting held on 16 November
2021.
To formulate and discuss recommendations for SEND provisions in
Southwark.
6.

EXCLUSIONS AND ALTERNATIVE PROVISION - UPDATE ON
IMPLEMENTATION OF SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS
Follow up from 2020-2021 Year
To receive an update from Jenny Brennan, Asst. Director Family
Early Help & Youth Justice, Children’s and Adults’ Services on
Exclusions and Alternative Provision - implementation of scrutiny
recommendations. (To Follow)

7.

PROCUREMENT: ACCESSIBILITY AND SOCIAL VALUE UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF SCRUTINY
RECOMMENDATIONS

39 - 70

Follow up from 2020-21 Year
To receive an update from Councillor Rebecca Lury, Cabinet
Member for Finance, Performance and Democracy. Officers
supporting this agenda item are Doreen Forrester-Brown, Director of
Law and Governance, Finance and Governance, Elaine McLester,
Head of Procurement, Finance and Governance and Patrick
Doherty, Principal Strategy Officer, Chief Executive’s
8.

PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME 2021-22
To note the proposed work programme for 2021-2022 and to
consider the inclusion of any additional items / amendments to the
work programme.
DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT
THE START OF THE MEETING.

Date: 24 January 2022

71 - 75

1

Agenda Item 5

Education, Health and Care Plan
Introduction
An EHC Plan (Education, Health and Care Plan) is a legally binding document that
identifies educational, health and social care needs and sets out the additional
support to be provided in order to meet those needs.
An EHC Plan is issued after a child or young person has gone through the process
of an EHC needs assessment.
It’s prepared in partnership with parents/carers and young people, professionals
working across education, health and social care specialist services.
EHC Plan Stages
Stage 1 (Weeks 0-6)
 A request for an EHC assessment is submitted by educational setting or the
parent.
 Southwark advice and information service (SAIS) will contact the parent to offer
a meeting to explain services available to the child including the process and
the Local Offer.
 A Multi-Agency Panel will be held to decide if an assessment is needed, based
on the criteria set by Education, Health and Social Care.
 If an EHC assessment is not necessary: The case will be stepped down to the
child’s school/setting or Family Early Help if/when appropriate. Parents have
the right to appeal at this stage.
Stage 2 (Weeks 6-12)
 The parent will meet with an SEN Team member who will explain what will
happen during the assessment period.
 The parent should provide written advice which forms part of the assessment
process.
 Professionals involved with the parent or the child will be identified (this may be
done in the meeting with the SEN Team member) and contacted to submit
reports.
Stage 3 (Weeks 12 to 16)
 All information collected in stage 2 will be submitted to the Multiagency Panel. It
will be decided if an EHC Plan is necessary.
 If an EHC Plan is necessary: An EHC Plan production meeting will be arranged
to start composing the plan. The plan will be drafted by staff from the SEN
Team, working with the parent/young person and the professionals involved.
 A draft EHC plan will be sent to the parent/young person and professionals to
check and approve. The parent/young person will have the chance to express a
school preference at this stage.
 If an EHC Plan is not necessary the case will be stepped down to the child’s
school/setting or Family Early Help if/when appropriate. Parents have the right
to appeal at this stage.

2

Stage 4 (Weeks 16 to 20)





The SEN Team and Caseworker will work with the parent to create a final
EHC plan
Once finalised the parent will be sent a final copy of the EHC plan and all
professionals will receive a copy
If the parent is not in agreement with the EHC Plan they have the right to
appeal.
The EHC Plan will be reviewed annually.

Starting Primary School
3

SIAS

Southwark Information, Advice & Support Team

 Impartial Advice
 Manage the Southwark Local Offer
 Support with appeals
 Work in partnership with families
 Further details can be found here:

https://localoffer.southwark.gov.uk/information-advice-and-support/support-groups-andservices/southwark-information-advice-and-support-team-sias

/

4

www.Localoffer@southwark.gov.uk

Choosing a school

• Visit localoffer.southwark.gov.ukfor school SEN offer

5

• Check school websites for details of how children with
individual needs are supported (Ofsted and SEND information
reports)
• Visit as many schools as possible. Check websites in advance
for details of alternative arrangements linked to Covid 19
• Make a note in advance of key factors important to you and
your child
• Speak with staff, including the SENCo if possible, to get an
understanding of how the school could support your child
• Note the pros and cons of each school to help you order your
preferences

Types of Schools

• Mainstream Schools

Tower Bridge Primary, Ark Globe Academy etc
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/schools-and-education/school-admissions/primary-admissions/applying-for-a
-primary-school-place

• Resource Base Schools (EHCP needed)
• Specialist Schools (EHCP needed)
Haymerle, Cherry Garden, Beormund, Spa
See the Local Offer for further details https://localoffer.southwark.gov.uk/education/specialistschools/southwark-resource-base-and-specialist-schools

6

Redriff, Snowsfields, Rye Oak, Brunswick Pk., St. Johns & St.
Clement’s, John Ruskin Primary, Lyndhurst Primary

Applying with an EHCP
• Primary transfer pack will be sent out at the beginning of September
2021. This will be from the SEN (Special Educational Needs) team
• If you do not receive this by 21st September 2021, contact the SEN team or
SIAS

• You have THREE choices
• Listing one school does not maximise chances.
• The SEN team ‘consult’ with each of your school choices. This means that
they ask schools if they feel able to meet your child’s needs as described in
the EHCP.

7

• Do not complete the online application process managed by the School
Admissions team

School allocation - EHCP

8

The Local Authority are likely to agree to your choice of
school(s) unless they consider that any of the following applies:
(a) the school or other institution requested is unsuitable for the
age, ability, aptitude or special educational needs of the child or
young person concerned, or
(b) the attendance of the child or young person at the requested
school or other institution would be incompatible with—
(i) the provision of efficient education for others, or
(ii) the efficient use of resources.
(From the Children & Families Act 2014)

Applying without an EHCP
• You will have to complete the Eadmissions online form
• Preferences are considered individually.
9

• You have SIX choices
• It is advised that you use all six preferences
• Complete Supplementary Information forms (SIF) where
required e.g. Faith school applications

Oversubscription Criteria
for non-EHCP applications

If a community school is oversubscribed, preference will be given to
applications from the following:
1. Children in public care (looked after children)
2. Children with siblings who are already on roll at the school

4. Children of permanent staff employed at the school
5. Children living nearest to the school
Other types of mainstream schools will have their own oversubscription
criteria – published on their website

10

3. Children with exceptional medical, social or psychological needs, where it is
agreed by the LA and the head teacher that these can best be addressed at a
particular school

Key dates - 2021
EHCP

Application forms being emailed to parents in July 2021
Application deadline: 6th October 2021
Notification of offer: January 2022
Final EHCP with school named: 15th February 2022

Non-EHCP
• Application deadline: 15th January 2022
• Notification of Offer: 16th April 2022

11

•
•
•
•

Appeal Process (EHCP)
• Right to appeal – You have 2 months from the date on the
decision letter to appeal to tribunal

– Dispute the content of the EHCP plan (You can enter into
mediation)

– Dispute the school allocated (Mediation does not apply on these
grounds)

12

• Grounds of appeal:

Appeal Process (Without EHCP)
• Remain on the waiting list for highest preference schools

• Academies and Free School appeals are made directly to the
schools
• Each school set their own deadline as to when the appeal
paperwork is to be submitted.

13

• Community School appeals are made to Southwark- Via
admissions team

Checklist
1. Research and Visits- ask questions
2. Preference- remember that by putting only one school down, it doesn’t mean your
chances of getting a place there will increase.

14

3. Deadlines
4. Offer and Appeals

SIAS Contact details

15

16

Southwark Information Advice and Support (SIAS)

Impartial advice

Support with appeals

Work in partnership with families

17

Manage the Southwark Local Offer

Type of Schools

• Academies
Harris Academy, City of London Academy
• Voluntary Aided
Notre Dame, St. Thomas the Apostle (STAC)

• Resource Base Schools
London Nautical School, City of London Academy
See the ‘Education’ section of www.Localoffer.southwark.gov.uk
for more information

18

• Free School
Haberdashers’ Askes Borough Academy, Charter
School ED

Special Schools

Type
- Social emotional & Mental
Health

• Highshore

- Mixed Needs

• Spa School

- Autism Specialist

• Tuke School

- Severe and Complex Needs

19

School
• Newlands
Academy

Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP)

• An Education, Health & Care plan (EHCP) is
required in order to apply for a Resource
Base or Special School
20

• There is a different school application
process for children who have an EHCP

Year 5 Annual Review

• The secondary school transition/transfer
should be discussed at the Year 5 Annual
Review

• The plan MUST be up to date and reflective of
child’s current needs:
• This is the time to raise any concerns
about the contents of the plan as this is
what schools will be consulted on

21

• Opportunity to discuss potential schools i.e.
mainstream and specialist

Choosing a School

•
•
•

•
•

22

•

Check school websites for details of how children with
individual needs are supported (Ofsted and SEND
information reports)
Visit as many schools as possible. Check websites in
advance for details of alternative arrangements linked to
Covid 19
(For those with an EHCP) Do not limit your visits to a
particular type of school, consider all options (mainstream
and specialist)
Make a note in advance of key factors important to you and
your child
Speak with staff, including the SENCo if possible, to get an
understanding of how the school could support your child
Note the pros and cons of each school to help you order
your preferences

Applying with an EHCP

Secondary Transfer pack will be sent out during July 2021. This
will be from the SEN (Special Educational Needs) Team

•

If you have not received this by 1st September 2021, contact
the SEN team or SIAS

•

Do not complete the online application process managed by
the School Admissions team

•

You can submit THREE preferences

•

Listing one school does not maximise chances

•

The SEN team ‘consult’ with each of your school choices. This
means that they ask schools if they feel able to meet your
child’s needs as described in the EHCP

23

•

Applying without an EHCP

You will have to complete the Eadmissions online form

•

Preferences are considered individually

•

You have SIX preferences

•

It is advised that you use all six
preferences

•

Complete Supplementary Information
forms (SIF) where required e.g. Faith
school applications

24

•

Applying without an EHCP: Oversubscription
Criteria
If a community school is oversubscribed, preference will be given to
applications from the following:

1. Children in public care (looked after children)
2. Children with siblings who are already on roll at the school

4. Children of permanent staff employed at the school
5. Children living nearest to the school
Other types of mainstream schools will have their own oversubscription
criteria – published on their website

25

3. Children with exceptional medical, social or psychological needs, where it
is agreed by the LA and the headteacher that these can best be
addressed at a particular school

Applying with an EHCP: School Allocation

The Local Authority are likely to agree to your choice of
school(s) unless they consider that any of the following
applies:

(From the Children & Families Act 2014)

26

(a) the school or other institution requested is unsuitable
for the age, ability, aptitude or special educational needs
of the child or young person concerned, or
(b) the attendance of the child or young person at the
requested school or other institution would be
incompatible with—
(i) the provision of efficient education for others, or
(ii) the efficient use of resources.

Key Dates

Non-EHCP
• Application deadline: 31st October 2021
• Notification of Offer: 1st March 2022

27

EHCP
• Application deadline: October 2021
• Notification of offer: January 2022
• Final EHCP with school named: 15th February
2022

Appeal Process (EHCP)

• Right to appeal – You have 2 months from the
date on the decision letter to appeal to tribunal

28

• Grounds of appeal:
• Dispute the contents of the EHCP plan (You can
enter into mediation)
• Dispute the school allocated (Mediation does
not apply on these grounds)

Appeal Process (without EHCP)

• Remain on the waiting list for highest preference
schools

• Academies and Free School appeals are made
directly to the schools
• Each school set their own deadline as to when the
appeal paperwork is to be submitted.

29

• Community School appeals are made to
Southwark

Final Pointers

• Think about how your child will fit into any of the
schools you are considering
• The Year 5 Annual Review is the time to raise any
concerns you have about the plan
30

• Visit as many schools as possible and make use of
your three choices
• DO NOT apply through School Admissions – the
application will be rejected and any school offers
rejected

Checklist

1. Visits

3. Deadline
4. Offer and Appeals

31

2. Preference

SIAS Contact details

Tel: 0207 525 3104
Email: SIAS@southwark.gov.uk

https://calendly.com/southwarkiass

32

Book a slot a the virtual drop in session
Tuesdays 9.30am-2pm:

33

www.localoffer.southwark.gov.uk

34

35

Officer responses to questions raised at the Education and Scrutiny
Commission meeting held on 16 November 2021 on SEND processes.

1) What insight and analysis from the 2015-2019 data can help us understand
the reasons behind the large drop in achievements of children with SEND
that are being admitted to specialist schools?












100% of special schools in Southwark are graded by Ofsted as good or better.
This compares to 95.3% of all Southwark schools graded as good or better.
(Nov 2021) We currently have 3 special schools and 2 hospital schools
graded as outstanding and 4 special schools graded as good. Progress,
outcomes and achievement therefore remain excellent in special schools.
An increase in complex needs in Southwark has changed the cohort
characteristics in special schools – so fewer are able to access national tests
which may flag up as a drop in achievement.
Over time the percentage of children in special schools eligible for national
tests has reduced. This can look like schools are on a downward trajectory in
terms of published achievement data. However, school assessments show
progress across all key stages but the number of children on roll who can
access national tests has significantly fallen.
For many children at Special Schools they follow a different pathway to the
mainstream national curriculum – working at a different pace. They are
assessed regularly against their targets set in Reading, phonics, writing and
maths. All schools are able to show progress that is at least good and above
for all cohorts in these subject areas.
In order to deliver a broad and balanced curriculum in special schools,
achievements for pupils are not just academic. Pupils achievements are also
measured against their EHCP targets.
For example in many special schools the curriculum focuses on delivering
core lessons that work towards meeting the longer term outcomes as set out
in the EHCP. The curriculum is designed around securing outcomes in the
following areas: communication, cognition, sensory and physical, personal
and social development and preparation for adulthood. Learning intentions
are short term targets that underpin the individual learning journey towards
the longer term outcomes.
Different special schools use different assessment systems to measure
progress. This means comparisons and levels/grading between schools
cannot always be compared like for like. These systems however, do show
the learning journey of each individual child and the achievements that they
have made against EHCP outcomes/curriculum targets.

2) What changes have there been in the method of assessments that could
have possible impacted the achievements from 2015-2019? For e.g. heavily
text-based thus disadvantaging children that are non-native English
speakers. (English as an additional language, EAL)

1

2017 – new GCSE for English Language, English Literature and Maths and
move to 9-1 scale

36














2018 – further 20 subjects move to 9-1 including sciences, history, MFL,
Geography
2019 – 25 new GCSEs examined
New GCSE’s are more challenging. Coursework has gone or is as an
additional endorsement only. AS material in maths is now included and in
English Literature there is an emphasis on Victorian Literature. Reading paper
is weighted towards the evaluative, whole text questions. One source is pre
1900 so vocabulary and context can be barriers to understanding.
Children are actively encouraged to sit 8 GCSEs including EBACC –
regardless of their ability or starting point in mainstream.
With the elimination of coursework at GCSE the emphasis is on rout learning
and subject content has grown.
BTEC qualifications have also been reformed – with exam element worth 60%
and controlled assessment 40%. You have to pass the exam in order to pass
overall.
GCSE/qualifications that count towards league tables have been reformed.
Some of the softer qualifications no longer count like the ECDL so schools are
reluctant to invest and run them. SEND students often sit a suite of GCSEs
they will only achieve a 1 and 2 in.
Some mainstream schools do offer ASDAN or functional skills but these are at
the schools discretion and can be costly to run for a small number of pupils.
Primary curriculum is ‘knowledge based’ and new SATS exams were
introduced from 2016. The dip in reading can be seen in the SEND data from
2017. This is a borough wide issue and not particular to the SEND population.
The reading framework came out July 2021 and sets out the teaching for the
foundations of literacy including the new phonics guidance. This should
support schools to improve reading outcomes. Schools are encouraged to use
a DfE endorsed phonics programme – this applies to all Special Schools.

3) What process or systemic improvements led to the rise in school referrals
up from 26% to 40% compared to 2018 audit at the Sunshine House,
community paediatric services? pg. 3 of report.
The percentage data is from small numbers so that any change increases/decreases
the percentage disproportionately. No overarching conclusions should be drawn
from this increase – the analysis is on 4-weeks of referrals each time it has been
completed, so it may just have been that in the 2018 audit there were an unusually
high number of GP referrals, which made school referrals appear lower. In the 2016
audit, for example, school referrals were at 40%, the same as the 2020 audit, so the
data is being over-interpreted to say there is a trend of any kind. In both instances,
our health colleagues are confident that broadly referrals are coming from the right
places, and they know from their day to day work that most referrals do come from
schools/nurseries, so clinical experience backs up the impression.
These audits are used for internal purposes, to look at whether paediatric services
are broadly getting referrals from the right places, how they are processed and
managed, the reasons children are referred over time and whether referrals are

2

37

appropriate/accepted/rejected; so that health services can refine the messages given
to referrers and to shape services.
After the 2018 audit, the referral form and the information on the website were
updated, with clearer information on referral criteria, which may have helped
referrers to refer appropriately.
4) How are EHC Plans managed with regards to refusal data, processing
timelines and targets?
All requests for assessment are considered by the multi-agency SEND panel. Panel
members read all the evidence presented for each case in preparation for discussion
and decision making.
In the year 2021 the LA received just over 500 requests for assessment, of which
one third were not agreed.
When deciding not to assess the panel ensure that information is shared with
settings and parents to explain the reasons why the LA has made this decision, and
guidance is offered regarding possible actions or next steps to better support the
child or young person.
Through on-going monitoring the LA identified that parental requests for assessment
had a higher refusal rate than we would like at around 50%. In many of these cases
this was due to a lack of information and evidence to support our decision-making,
e.g. the parent had requested by letter with no additional information, or the setting
has not submitted the requested information in time.
The LA has worked with our local partner agencies to review and improve our
information gathering processes to address this issue and the data will be reviewed
regularly to identify if it is having the desired impact or if further changes are
required.
As part of our on-going work with our parent carer forum, Southwark independent
Voice (SIV), we will also look at how better to support parents to include appropriate
information with their initial request.
The LA monitors the 20 week completion timelines for EHCPs on an on-going basis,
to allow for issues impacting timeliness to be identified as early as possible and
possible solutions considered. The LA reports on a quarterly and annual basis to the
Council and to the DfE. The targets for EHCP timelines are set in line with (or just
above) national targets (these are achieved) and we are generally above
neighbouring London boroughs 20 week timelines. The national data indicates that
nationally there has been an increase in the number of new plans issued, alongside
a reduction generally in the % of plans issued on time. This increase in new EHCPs
is apparent in Southwark, although we maintained our 20 week percentage well.

3

38

5) What are the issues and reasons behind the lack of admissions in
secondary schools of children with SEND in Southwark’s Schools and
Academies?
Over all, Southwark has a higher % of pupils with EHCP’s attending mainstream
schools than the national average, although placement in academies is slightly lower
than the national average.
When children with EHCPs are due to transfer to secondary school, parents are
asked to indicate which schools they would like their child to attend. Many parents at
this point choose to seek a specialist placement for their child. This is often due to
the fact that they are aware that their child managed within a primary mainstream
school but are concerned that the social and academic demands of a mainstream
secondary may not be appropriate for their child.
The LA has a duty to follow the parental preference unless their choice is unsuitable
for the needs of the child, incompatible with the provision of efficient education of
others or with the efficient use of resources.
The draft SEND strategy has a focus on the inclusion of children with SEND in
mainstream schools. This work will look at enabling schools to improve and sustain
their inclusive practice, despite the budget and curriculum constraints they are under.
Improving joint working between all agencies to support our children with SEND
more effectively is also a priority.
Extending the offer and training opportunities for all secondary staff in SEND is
ongoing and links to national programmes.
6) What is Southwark Council doing to encourage provision of more SEND
places in the borough?
The previous SEND Capital strategy is in the process of being replaced by the SEND
strategy for the next 3 years. This is in draft format and will be issued for wider
consultation as soon as possible. The strategy is aligned to the SEND Capital grant
and, alongside smaller projects in individual mainstream schools it seeks to:





4

Enable 2 of the borough’s nursery schools to support children with complex
SEND needs
Expand the number of places for children with ASD across the continuum of
need for mainstream and special places
Rebuild Beormund Special School to increase the places for primary aged
children with social, emotional and mental health needs
Consider options for expanding provision for 16-25 year olds with complex
SEND needs.

39

Item No.
16.

Classification:
Open

Date:
1 February 2022

Agenda Item 7
Meeting Name:
Cabinet

Report title:

Update to Fairer Future Procurement Framework

Ward(s) or groups affected:

All

Cabinet Member:

Councillor Rebecca Lury, Finance, Performance
and Democracy

FOREWORD - COUNCILLOR REBECCA LURY, CABINET MEMBER FOR
FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND DEMOCRACY
Thanks to the work of the council’s scrutiny commission who looked into
procurement in detail, we have made a number of changes to our Fairer Future
Procurement Framework. These are reflected in this cabinet report.
We will continue to work to take forward the recommendations from the committee
during 2022.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That cabinet approve the refreshed Fairer Future Procurement Framework
(FFPF), at Appendix 1.

2.

That cabinet note the update on actions taken and that a report will be brought
back to Cabinet by the end of 2022 to update on the next steps within this report
in relation to social value.

3.

That cabinet agree the continued delegation of approval for minor and
consequential amendments to the FFPF to the Director of Law and
Governance, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance &
Resources.

4.

That cabinet note the on-going work across the Council, led by the Local
Economy Team to support the delivery of the recommendations of the
education and business scrutiny commission’s report on procurement:
accessibility and social value from July 2020 as detailed in paragraph 15.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
5.

A review by overview & scrutiny committee of commissioning and procurement
in Southwark in 2015 led to the development of the first Fairer Future
Procurement Strategy (FFPS). This aimed to introduce clear processes,
including Gateway 0 reports for services over £10m in value, briefings for
cabinet members for all procurements over £100k in value and enhanced
provisions relating to blacklisting.

40

6.

Following this, the council approved the Council Plan 2018-22 and revised
Fairer Future Commitments in November 2018. These changes were
reflected in an updated document, the Fairer Future Procurement Framework
(FFPF), which incorporated changes to legislation, guidance and policies,
made reference to social value, the Construction Charter and the End Violence
at Work Charter, and strengthened provisions in relation to workforce issues.

7.

The revised Framework was approved by cabinet on 18 June 2019 and
cabinet was also asked to note next steps for enhancing the council’s
commitment to social value in procurement, with a report to be brought back
on their implementation and impact.

8.

At their meeting in December 2020, cabinet received a report which considered
the recommendations made by the education and business scrutiny commission
in July 2020 following their investigation into the accessibility of procurement
opportunities in Southwark to local businesses and community organisations
and their review of the council’s early activity to implement social value
provisions of its Fairer Future Procurement Framework. This report builds on
that and also proposes further changes to ensure this is a living document best
supporting the council’s needs and aspirations from partner organisations it
enters into contracts with.

9.

A future report progress in relation to the scrutiny report and on updates to the
FFPF and were presented to Cabinet on 8 December 2020 and 18 January
2021 respectively.

Summary of the business case/justification for the procurement
10. As the education and business scrutiny commission noted in their report to
cabinet in July 2020, there is currently a gap between where the council is and
where it wishes to be in terms of its strategic ambitions in respect of accessibility
to small businesses and existing social value practice within the procurement
landscape, as well as having the data to measure and report upon these areas.
The report back to cabinet in December 2020 recognised that many of the areas
identified through the commission’s review need to be considered in the context
of broader priorities and work streams already being undertaken across the
council, including the Fairer Future Procurement Framework and also Southwark
Stands Together, the Borough Plan, and the Economic Renewal Plan.
Recommendations which are of particular relevance to the work on the refresh
of the FFPF have been considered in the paragraphs below.
11. The scrutiny commission recommended that the council should collect equalities
data and local spending data. The refreshed FFPF includes a commitment to
supporting this aspiration and the ongoing Southwark Stands Together
programme, the Economic Renewal Plan aspirations and the refreshed Borough
Plan are all relevant to this piece of work. However, the collection of data has
significant resource implications (in terms of staffing and potentially changes to
IT systems) and its implementation was dependent on additional funding, a bid
for which was made as part of the council’s 2021-22 budget setting process.

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

2Last Updated November 2021

41

12. It should be noted that successful implementation of these proposals is
dependent on the voluntary provision of information by businesses and work to
be undertaken will include consultation and engagement with them.
13. The commissioning of external data analysis and training to understand the
current situation in relation to Southwark Council is underway following the
commissioning of the Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES) by the
Local Economy Team in support of achieving the scrutiny panel’s
recommendations. It is intended that this work will support Southwark Council
in its aims to increase local spend volumes as part of community wealth
building, as well as being shared via the work with Southwark Anchor
Institutions in which procurement is a key element.
14. The report back to cabinet on the scrutiny commission’s review also noted
that, in relation to its recommendation that the council should share best
procurement practice across departments, this was already in place through
newsletters and drop in advisory sessions, but this will always be considered
wherever possible.
15. It should also be noted that, although some of the actions below have been
addressed relatively easily and speedily, others have resourcing implications
and are being led by the Local Economy Team who have commissioned the
Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES) for spend data upon which to
baseline the Council’s current position in relation to spend with local and small
and medium sized businesses. This will form the basis of next steps to deliver
on this work.
16. The approval of key updates to Equalities, Health Impact and Climate Change
Strategy by Cabinet in July 2021 have all been reflected within the updated
FFPF to ensure that this is up to date.
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
17.

A summary of the updates to the FFPF are included below:

Update
Included reference to Southwark
Council’s Climate Change Strategy that
was approved by Cabinet in July 2021.

Comment
Additional work to support procurement
on integrating climate change and
environmental targets such as climate
change are planned by the Climate
Change Team and incorporating any
targets and actions into the FFPF will
be carried out to keep this up to date.
Included reference to Southwark Revised guidance to support the new
Council’s Framework for Equality that Framework
for
Equality
for
was approved by Cabinet in July 2021. procurement and commissioning is
planned for equality impact and needs
analysis (EINA) following work by
September 2022.

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

3Last Updated November 2021

42

Update
Training for officers around
procurement, social value and contract
management.

Updates to terminology to reflect
house style and agreement have been
reflected in the FFPF.

Comment
As well as the training for officers that
was developed, including social value
and the achievement of best value, as
part of a digital training package
available to all staff via
MyLearningSource.
A new toolkit on Contract Management
best practice that includes the
monitoring of FFPF elements and
requirements for updating the
Contracts Register has been delivered
to support officers with contracts to
manage.
On-going reviews on training and
capacity building will be undertaken as
required in the National Procurement
Policy Statement that is detailed later
in this report.
This has been carried out in the light of
the Southwark Stands Together
programme within the council.

Other areas
18. Other areas that have come about and may have future impacts on elements
for the council’s procurement and inclusion within the FFPF are set out below.
Modern Slavery
19. Support and membership of the Task and Finish Group in relation to delivery
of the outcomes of the Community Safety Scrutiny Commission’s May 2019
report into Modern Slavery is on-going with the Procurement Advice Team as
part of this forum. Future updates to the FFPF may flow from any resultant
strategy or policy on this, which is expected in mid-2022.
Legislative Changes
20. New Public Contract Regulations following Britain’s departure from the
European Union had been expected. This has now been confirmed as being
likely in 2023, with 6 months’ notice of implementation. Once knows, a report
will come to cabinet updating relevant elements of the constitution and the
FFPF.
21. A National Procurement Strategy Statement was published by the government
in June 2021. The NPPS includes a number of requirements for all Local
Authorities and includes the requirement to:




Publication of a pipeline of future procurement projects to be undertaken
in the next 2-3 years for the council from April 2022.
Consider national as well as local priorities in terms of procurement that is
undertaken.
Review and benchmarking of procurement skills and capacity to deliver to

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

4Last Updated November 2021

43

the needs of the organisation.
22. Legislation to enact the obligations from the NPPS is expected but the exact
working is not yet known. As this the changes to the Public Contract
Regulation, this will be monitored to ensure that the council meets its statutory
obligations.
Medium Term Resource Strategy (MTRS)
23. The importance of the FFPF in relation to the way in which resources are
delivered to the council when it partners with external contractors has meant
that reference to the FFPF has been specifically included.
Contract Management
24. A Contract Management Toolkit has been developed and implemented to
support the Lead Contract Officers within departments to manage and monitor
their larger contracts. The Contract Management Toolkit sets out a structure
and includes templates and guidance documents that support Southwark’s
approach to effective contract management. It is designed for contracts with
a value over £100,000; however as the toolkit is best practice and can be
applied to any contract.
25. The purpose of the Contract Management Toolkit is to provide a consistent
approach to contract management across the council. The toolkit provides
tools, techniques and templates to support contract management at both a
strategic and an operational level. It is designed to be flexible and
proportionate depending on the nature of the contract.
26. Effective contract management is important as it:








Ensures the contract is delivered for the purpose it was intended, at
agreed levels, workmanship and costs
Effectively measures contract compliance and performance in a
continuous way
Ensures all parties to the contract have an effective working relationship
Reduces the risk of disputes and litigation, which can be costly and cause
reputational damage
Provides clear mechanisms for managing change
Ensures accurate and relevant reporting and monitoring including on the
FFPF
Fulfils the parties’ contractual obligations.

27. The templates within the toolkit provide guidance for officers to deliver and
report on the achievement of the council’s commitments within the FFPF as
this remains the responsibility of individual departments and contract owners
for management, monitoring and reporting.

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

5Last Updated November 2021

44

Social Value
28. Social Value is defined by the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012
(PSSVA) as “the additional benefit to the community from a commissioning or
procurement process over and above the direct purchasing of goods, services
and outcomes”. The Act requires considerations at the pre-procurement stage
of how the procurement might “improve the economic, social and
environmental well-being of the relevant area” via the procurement process.
29. The council’s approach goes further than the requirements of the Act, which
covers only services contracts over £189k in value. The FFPF confirmed that
social value should be considered for inclusion in all contracts (goods, works
and services) over £100k.
30. In recognition of the significant impact that the council’s spend can have on its
residents and local area, the FFPF states that all tenders, over £100k in value
should include social value criteria equivalent to at least 15% of the tender
evaluation scores. Full details of the evaluation criteria and the assessment
of social value should be set out in the gateway 1 report as this has to be
assessed on a case-by-case basis.
31. The ideal area for social value is to be a win/win: of benefit to the council /
borough but practicable for a supplier to offer. This may be offering
apprenticeships, work placements or career talks at schools. Equally it can
also cover elements around efforts towards meeting the council’s
environmental targets e.g. carbon reduction targets (aiming for a carbon
neutral borough by recycling / use of sustainable materials / reduction in use
of single use plastics).
32. As set out in the January 2021 report, the council uses the Social Value Portal
for appropriate larger value and longer terms contracts that seek approval from
Cabinet for their procurement strategy and award.
33. These have been used but have been lesser in relation to the delivery of some
of the new council homes procurement processes. These have been
generally very high value but have relatively quick procurement timelines,
especially with time-limited grant conditions attached and are complex in their
ability to approach the market.
34. Social Value has been included from the start of the FFPF with guidance on
allowing percentages of up to 15% being allocated to Social Value. As per the
report to Cabinet in January 2021, those contracts over a value for which they
come to Cabinet will also, where appropriate, utilise greater support via the
use of the Social Value Portal (SVP). This tool allows suppliers to bid against
Themes, Outcomes and Measures (TOMs) including those that are central to
Southwark’s commitments, such as London Living Wage (LLW). Successful
suppliers use the SVP to report on social value delivery and record this as part
of contract management and monitoring.
35. This has worked well to date and social value inclusions within procurements

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

6Last Updated November 2021

45

has been successful in delivering outcomes for Southwark and its residents.
36. Social value does present challenges in relation to the core focus of what is
desirable from external partner organisations in support of delivering
apprenticeships and achieving carbon neutrality but the complexities that are
presented, such as definitions of local within London are an ongoing area of
challenge to successfully support the delivery of Southwark’s Fairer Future
Commitments and Borough Plan.
Framework Agreements
37. Framework Agreements are often used by the council to access goods, works
and services that have been procured in accordance with the Public Contract
Regulations (2015). When calling off from a Framework Agreement, it can be
challenging to incorporate the full obligations of the FFPF but this should be
explored by officers and set out in relevant gateway reports where intending
to use a framework, how these elements will be included.
Update on additional elements
38. A number of elements in relation to the FFPF are still outstanding as have
been noted in previous reports.
Bring the Southwark construction
charter back to cabinet for approval in
September 2019. Once agreed, it will
be incorporated into future
construction contracts entered into by
the council.
Undertake further investigation into the
work of ‘Electronic Watch’ which
monitors the public procurement of
electronic goods and supply chains,
with a view to see what more the
council needs to do to ensure the rights
of all workers in our electronic supply
chain are respected and their working
conditions are safe and decent

The Southwark construction charter is
based on the Unite charter and is on
hold pending ongoing consideration by
the trade union of revisions: it will be
brought back to cabinet once Unite
has finalised the wording.
This action was put on hold during the
pandemic with prioritisation of
resources as this work requires the
involvement of the shared IT service.
Resources to undertake this work have
yet to be identified.

The refreshed Fairer Future Procurement Framework
39. The refreshed Fairer Future Procurement Framework is attached at Appendix
1. Further changes made in light of other policy commitments are set out in
the paragraphs below.
40. The Economic Renewal Plan includes a work stream (2.19) being led by the
Local Economy Team to support Southwark Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic
led and women-led businesses to secure contracts with public sector anchor
institutions. One of the key tasks is to develop a plan of support, aligned to
the FFPF, to assist these enterprises to bid for and secure public sector
Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

7Last Updated November 2021

46

contracts. These commitments are also set out in the council’s Borough Plan
and are reflected in the refreshed FFPF.
41. The Economic Renewal Plan also sets out a work stream (2.20) to encourage
all Southwark businesses with more than 50 employees to publish their Black
Asian and Minority Ethnic and gender pay gaps ( this is also included in the
council’s Borough Plan) and notes that as part of the FFPF, the council will
request that all contractors with 50+ employees commit to publish their Black,
Asian and Minority Ethnic and gender pay gap on contracts greater than £100k
and will also develop an engagement plan with Southwark businesses to
encourage them to do this. The requirements for the gender and Black, Asian
and Minority Ethnic pay gap information that go above and beyond statutory
provisions are already within the FFPF.
42. As noted, the Contract Management Toolkit that has been developed that
includes the templates to support the management and monitoring of
contracts, including the obligations of the FFPF as an aid for departments and
Lead Contract Officers when managing their contracts.
Next Steps
43. Further updates on local spend reporting as the basis for delivering upon the
scrutiny recommendations will follow the work being undertaken by CLES as
set out in paragraph 15 above.
44. In relation to the FFPF, there are a number of areas that it is recommended
that work is undertaken in addition to those elements already covered in this
report that will be reported back to Cabinet by the end of 2022.
45. The progress undertaken by the council in relation to the delivery of Social
Value from its procurement processes is recognised but should be reviewed
through 2022/23 to develop a Social Value Strategy for Southwark Council
that takes into consideration:






the council’s priorities and updated borough plan
the work and opportunities presented across the council on this area
including on Climate Change and Action Plans
the work associated Community Wealth Building and Economic Renewal
aims via networks of Southwark-based Anchor Institutions, in relation to
key shared areas of interest in procurement, social value, climate change
and modern slavery
the statutory framework that new Public Contract Regulations will present
in relation to Social Value.

46. A review of governance arrangements should be made with recommendations
around the processes for departments to report at a council-wide level, the
performance of their contracts in relation to core contract deliverables, social
value commitments and adherence to the FFPF requirements by their
contracts.

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

8Last Updated November 2021

47

47. Review of the impact of new procurement legislation will be undertaken as
soon as this is available.
Identified risks for the procurement
48. There are no specific risks inherent in the recommendations contained within
the FFPF. Each procurement required appropriate decision making processes
to be carried out within the governance process and include any risks that are
specific to the procurement being carried out.
Key / Non Key decisions
49. This report deals with a key decision.
Policy Framework Implications
50. The FFPF is designed to support in the delivery of the Fairer Future
Commitments and the council’s Borough Plan delivered via external partner
organisations.
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts
Community impact statement
51. There are no direct implications of the FFPF on community impact as these
will be required in line with the council’s requirements in line with the
community impact for all contracts and to be reported in gateway reports for
all over £100k in value.
Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement
52.

The public sector equality duty (PSED) requires the council to give due
consideration to the needs of different protected characteristics in relation to
the three parts of the duty:
a) Eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation.
b) Advancing equality of opportunity, including finding out about and meeting
diverse needs of our local communities, addressing disadvantage and
barriers to equal access; enabling all voices to be heard in our
engagement and consultation undertaken; increasing the participation of
underrepresented groups.
c) Fostering good community relations; promoting good relations; to be a
borough where all feel welcome, included, valued, safe and respected.

53. The PSED is now also further reinforced in the two additional Fairer Future
values that the council will:
a) Always work to make Southwark more equal and just
b) Stand against all forms of discrimination and racism.
54. The revised FFPF has been amended to include commitments in the Borough
Plan, Economic Renewal Plan and Southwark Stands Together:

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

9Last Updated November 2021

48

 An equality impact and needs analysis (EINA) must inform all
commissioning and procurement. All Gateway 0 strategic assessments and
Gateway 1 reports must show that all relevant equality issues and
obligations are taken into account and planned throughout both the
procurement process and in the delivery of those functions on behalf of the
council.
 The Southwark Framework for Equality replaced the Approach to Equality
after being approved by cabinet in July 2021. One key element will be
commissioning, procurement and equalities. Revised guidance will also be
produced in September 2022 to support officers undertaking procurement
or commissioning processes in relation to equalities.
55. The public sector equality duty (PSED) is a continuing duty, equality
considerations must be considered at each stage of the commissioning and
procurement cycle.
56. There are no direct implications of the changes to the FFPF on equality
requirements as all procurement and contracts over a value of £100k will be
required to complete gateway forms in line with the council’s Framework for
Equalities that includes socio-economic impact.
Health impact statement
57. There is no direct implication of the FFPF on the health of residents of the
borough, as the specific details and implications of procurement processes for
all requirements that are required and will be recorded in gateway reports for
all contracts over £100k in value with their health impact statement.
Climate change implications
58. The FFPF now includes the obligations to review and include the requirements
of Southwark Council’s Climate Change Strategy when assessing all relevant
contract. Future work on developing additional processes and information that
will support procurements around baselines plans and reporting are planned
and will be supported to include these elements within the FFPF as part of
procurement evaluation processes and during the performance of the contract
as part of the contract management and reporting mechanisms.
Staffing/procurement implications
59. No additional resource implications follow from the recommendations in the
updated Fairer Future Procurement Framework. A review of a future
resourcing implications that arise from the outcomes of the CLES work in
relation the delivery of the scrutiny panel recommendations and in support of
great local spend and Community Wealth Building will be considered by the
Local Economy and Procurement Advice Teams respectively.
Financial implications
60.

There are no direct implications of the Fairer Future Procurement Framework

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

10Last Updated November 2021

49

and all information will be contained within individual gateway reports relating
to contracts.
61. There are potential resource implications and any budgetary implications
arising from these will need to be considered as part of the wider consideration
of next steps. Where it is not possible to contain the costs of any action plans
arising from this report within existing budgets, they may need to be
considered in relation to seeking additional funding as part of the council’s
budget setting process.
Legal implications
62. Please see concurrent from the Director of Law and Governance.
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS
Director of Law and Governance
63. This report seeks the Cabinet's approval to the refreshed Fairer Future
Procurement Framework (FFPF), shown in Appendix 1 and to note the update
on actions taken to enhance the council’s commitment to social value in
procurement. Cabinet is also requested to agree the continued delegation of
approval for minor and consequential amendments to the FFPF to the Director
of Law and Governance, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance
& Resources. Furthermore, Cabinet is requested to note the on-going work
across the council, led by the Local Economy Team to support the delivery of
the recommendations of the education and business scrutiny commission’s
report on procurement: accessibility and social value from July 2020 as
detailed in paragraph 15 of this report.
64. Paragraph 17 of this report gives a summary of the updates to the FFPF with
further details being in the body of this report and in Appendix 1.
65. The key considerations and commitments set out in the FFPF and council
procurements must comply with and be delivered in accordance with all
applicable UK legislation and guidance. Relevant legislation are noted in the
FFPF, but includes the Public Contract Regulations 2015, as amended by
Brexit provisions including the Public Procurement (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit)
Regulations 2020 SI 2020 No.1319, the Public Services (Social Value) Act
2012 and the Equality Act 2010. There is also a need to ensure compliance
with the council’s Contract Standing Orders which forms part of the council’s
Constitution. In addition, the National Procurement Strategy Statement
published by the government in June 2021 sets out the requirements for all
local authorities and includes the requirements outlined in paragraph 21 of this
report and paragraph 78 of the FFPF. Officers in Law and Governance will
continue to provide support and guidance in the implementation of the
refreshed FFPF, and any necessary amendments to contract and tender
documents.
66. The Cabinet's attention is drawn to the Public Sector Equality duty (PSED

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

11Last Updated November 2021

50

General Duty) under the Equality Act 2010, and when making decisions to
have regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment,
victimisation or other prohibited conduct, (b) to advance equality of opportunity
and (c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. The relevant characteristics are
age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, relation,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation, The duty also applies to marriage
and civil partnership but only in relation to (a). The Cabinet is specifically
referred to the community impact statement at paragraphs 51 to 57 of this
report, and also paragraph 22 of the FFPF setting out the consideration that
has been given to equalities issues, which should be considered when
approving the recommendations in this report.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Documents
Report to cabinet 18 January 2021

Held At
Constitutional Team
Southwark Council
160 Tooley Street

Contact
Paula.thornton@s
outhwark.gov.uk

London SE1 2QH

Link (please copy and paste into browser):
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s93008/Report%20Update%20on%20Fair
er%20Future%20Procurement%20Framework.pdf

Report to cabinet 8 December
2020:

Constitutional Team
Southwark Council
160 Tooley Street

Paula.thornton@s
outhwark.gov.uk

London SE1 2QH

Link (please copy and paste into browser):
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92387/Report%20Response%20to%20t
he%20Education%20Business%20Scrutiny%20Commission%20report%20on%20procure
ment%20accessibility.pdf

Report to cabinet Report to cabinet Constitutional Team
18 June 2019:
Southwark Council
160 Tooley Street

Paula.thornton@s
outhwark.gov.uk

London SE1 2QH

Link (please copy and paste into browser):
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s83220/Report%20Fairer%20Future%20Pr
ocurement%20Strategy.pdf

APPENDICES
No
Appendix 1

Title
Fairer Future Procurement Framework January 2022

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

12Last Updated November 2021

51

AUDIT TRAIL
Cabinet Member Councillor Rebecca Lury, Finance, Performance and
Democracy
Doreen Forrester-Brown, Director of Law and Governance
Lead Officer
Report Author

Elaine McLester, Head of Procurement

Version

Final

Dated

24 January 2022

Key Decision?

Yes

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET
MEMBER
Officer Title

Comments Sought Comments included

Strategic Director of Finance and
Governance
Director of Law and Governance

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Director of Strategy and Economy

Yes

Yes

Corporate Contract Review Board

Yes

Yes

Cabinet Member

Yes

Yes

Contract Review Boards

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team

Gateway 1 report template - Cabinet

24 January 2022

13Last Updated November 2021

52

Appendix 1
Southwark Council’s
Fairer Future
Procurement Framework

January 2022

1

53

Table of Contents
The Financial Context ................................................................................................ 3
Background ................................................................................................................ 3
Fairer Future Commitments ....................................................................................... 4
Spending Money As If It Were From Our Own Pocket ............................................... 5
Open, Honest and Accountable ................................................................................. 6
Southwark Economic Wellbeing Strategy................................................................... 7
Equalities, Health and Community Impact.................................................................. 7
Workforce Issues........................................................................................................ 7
Health & Safety and Wellbeing ................................................................................... 8
Violence at Work Charter ........................................................................................... 9
London Living Wage................................................................................................... 9
Prompt Payment ...................................................................................................... 10
Consideration of Trade Union Recognition............................................................... 10
Blacklisting ............................................................................................................... 10
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion ............................................................................... 10
Black Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap ................................................................ 11
Good Work Standard................................................................................................ 11
Southwark Ethical Care Charter (SECC) .................................................................. 12
Modern Slavery ........................................................................................................ 12
Social Value ............................................................................................................. 12
Southwark Construction Charter .............................................................................. 14
A Greener Borough .................................................................................................. 14
Fairtrade ................................................................................................................... 15
Freedom of Information ............................................................................................ 15
Data Protection ........................................................................................................ 15
Staff Procurement and Contract Management Skills and Training ........................... 16
Framework Agreements ........................................................................................... 16
Contracts Register.................................................................................................... 16
National Procurement Policy Statement ................................................................... 16
Legislative Framework ............................................................................................. 17
Weblinks................................................................................................................... 17
Version Control ........................................................................................................ 19

2

54

Purpose and Scope
Southwark Council’s Fairer Future Procurement Framework (FFPF) sets out how the
council will use its procurement to support the delivery of the Borough Plan and Fairer
Future Commitments and the processes and practices that are needed to do this. The
council expects all of its procurement activity to be undertaken to the highest ethical,
sustainable and responsible standards and within a robust and transparent
governance framework.
This framework sets out:

The values that inform the procurement of goods, works and services for high
value contracts. For procurement below £100k officers will have regard to the
resources available to smaller providers which may bid for lower value
contracts.

The responsibilities of staff when procuring high quality contracts for the
residents of Southwark

The minimum standards of conduct that external providers, key stakeholders,
partners, businesses and organisations who seek to do business with the council
should meet

The wider ambitions and expectations that we wish our procurement to deliver
and how this will influence our decision-making during procurements
The Financial Context
1.

LBS has an annual turnover of £1.2bn
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/key-documents/budgetbook

2.

Southwark Council spends approximately £650m each year with external
contractors for a variety of goods, works and services that allow it to meet its
commitments to residents. This spending power means that the council can –
and should - use its financial influence for ethical and sustainable impact and for
outcomes that increase social value. This FFPF sets out the council’s aim that
good procurement can deliver not just high quality contracts and value for money
but that it can also support the wider ambitions detailed in the Borough Plan.
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/fairer-future/council-plan

3.

These contracts, together with direct service delivery undertaken by council staff
and the council’s role in local planning and development, means that the entire
sphere of influence of the council is significant for the borough, its residents,
businesses and the local economy.
Background
4.

The council has committed to minimum standards that must be met in the direct
delivery of contracts and these are equally applicable to those organisations that
we work with through external contracts, both directly or as part of the wider
supply chain.

3

55

5.

When procuring contract requirements the council should always clearly:

Identify service needs and options for the ways in which these may be best
delivered

Procure the goods, services and works where contracting is the preferred
option via organisations who will have and will act upon the principles that
the council requires from those it works with

Manage and monitor contracts and the delivery of performance and
commitments, once the contracts have been awarded

6.

A first version of a Fairer Future Procurement Strategy, approved in 2016, was
presented as an internal document that predominantly reflected the desire for
greater feedback and engagement with the procurement process. This updated
framework takes account of the new legislative background for procurement and
the updated Borough Plan and Fairer Future Commitments. It also aims to move
away from an internal focus for engagement, firmly embed the council’s
principles into processes and ensure that suppliers and potential suppliers
understand the values and aims that the council wants from its delivery partners.

7.

The Fairer Future Procurement Framework must be read in conjunction with the
council’s Contract Standing Orders and any procurement guidelines. The
Contract Standing Orders can be found at:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=425

Fairer Future Commitments
8.

The council’s Fairer Future Commitments and values support what we will look
at within our procurements and the suppliers that we will work with to deliver our
contracts. These commitments shape how the spend under all contracts should
achieve maximum benefit to our local area, economy and our residents. The
council’s promise to deliver value for money across all our high quality contracts
and to be open, honest and accountable underpins all procurement projects and
runs throughout the Fairer Future Procurement Framework to deliver the
Borough Plan.

9.

Our Borough Plan sets out the council’s Fairer Future Commitments to all
residents and communities in respect of:

COVID-19 response

Southwark Together

A green and inclusive economy

Climate Emergency

Tackling health inequalities

Homes for all

A great start in life

Thriving neighbourhoods

4

56

10. The Values of the council are that we will:

Treat residents as if they were a valued member of our own family

Be open, honest and accountable

Spend money as if it were from our own pocket

Work for everyone to realise their own potential

Make Southwark a place to be proud of

Always work to make Southwark more equal and just

Stand against all forms of discrimination and racism
Spending Money As If It Were From Our Own Pocket
11. When reviewing service delivery and procuring the council will address the
following points:

To consider the need to balance price and quality, and to be explicit about
the relative importance of both

To challenge procurement arrangements and seek opportunities to reduce
price, improve quality and maximise efficiency

To complete a whole life analysis of options and assessment of risks

To continue joint procurement of contracts with other councils where such
arrangements deliver value for money and improved outcomes

To reduce the costs of procurement processes and the time it takes by
taking a planned and co-ordinated approach that is efficient, effective and
streamlined, avoiding duplication and waste

To ensure existing contracts, frameworks and internal and external
procurement options or collaboration opportunities are utilised where
appropriate to reduce procurement costs

To undertake a strategic assessment of delivery options before any
procurement for all services that have a value of £10m or more

To deliver value for money across all our service delivery and contracts

To confirm how contracts’ performance and commitments will be monitored
and managed during their performance.
12. The council operates an ‘in-house’ preferred provider procurement process
based on the high quality of contracts this provides for residents, the terms,
conditions and wellbeing this affords our staff and the stability, direct control and
flexibility this affords us in the management of our services. The council has a
good record of bringing previously outsourced services in-house.
13. However, we currently have a mixed economy of goods and services provision
and see no reason why this will not continue well into the future. Ready access
to a diverse, competitive range of suppliers providing quality services, goods and
works (including small firms, social enterprises, minority businesses, and
voluntary and community sector groups) who offer expertise and knowledge is a
good thing, particularly where local sourcing and local employment is
encouraged and increased.

5

57

14. It is important that projects give enough attention and time to plan, in order to take
up opportunities that are available. Critically assessing our business needs, from
a “make or buy” decision, challenging the specified levels of service or identifying
possible process efficiencies are important precursors in the procurement planning
process, together with the planning of tender evaluation and contract management
that help to ensure any possible contract delivers best value.
15. As part of the “make or buy” option, full consideration of in-house service delivery
is the first part of the planning process and explicit consideration of whether the
works, goods or services could be provided in-house must be included when
developing the procurement strategy. This consideration must be clearly set out
in Gateway 0 strategic assessments for service contracts worth over £10m and
be addressed at Gateway 1 for all contracts over £100,000.
16. Where contracting with external suppliers is selected for providing services,
goods or works, the procurement strategy (Gateway 1 report) must demonstrate
how this will be successful in meeting defined service objectives and the
commitments of the Borough Plan, and how it will achieve long term value for
money.
Open, Honest and Accountable
17. In accordance with our Fairer Future Commitments, the council will seek to
exercise good governance in the procurement process. This will include:

Ensuring all procurement practices are legal, ethical and transparent,
conforming to procurement legislation and regulation and robust enough to
meet the challenge of external scrutiny

Applying appropriate governance arrangements to meet the principles of
openness and accountability, and to manage risk

Having clear, unambiguous and sufficiently flexible operational
arrangements that respond to service needs, reduce red tape and protect
statutory and regulatory responsibilities of the council

Promoting the commitment of suppliers to the prevention and detection of
fraud and corruption in their processes

Ensuring organisations that the council works with have or will deliver the
values that it has committed to and setting out a clear process to monitor
this

Environmental Commitments such as the reduction in carbon emissions
and where appropriate, complying with requirements such as the Ultra Low
Emission Zone (ULEZ)
18. The council has an established gateway process as part of the governance process
set out in Contract Standing Orders. These gateways support the strategic
assessment, procurement strategy, contract award and contract variations for
contracts. They are approved as set out in the council’s Constitution and offer clear
governance and best practice for procurement processes.

6

58

19. The use of the e-procurement system also supports transparency on the way in
which the council will undertake its procurement processes, as well as recording
and reporting on contract delivery and performance.
Southwark Economic Wellbeing Strategy
20. The council’s Economic Wellbeing Strategy sets out our ambitions to support
residents, local businesses and our local economy in tough economic times. Our
Fairer Future Procurement Framework should closely align with our vision of
being a borough that is open for business and to support and promote economic
wellbeing. Our strategy is –

Employment & Skills: A full employment borough with a job opportunity for
every Southwark residents who wants to work

Business: A growth borough where business thrives and prospers

Town centres and high streets: Thriving town centres and high streets

Financial wellbeing: Helping people to grow their incomes and ensuring a
fair day’s pay for a fair day’s work
The full strategy can be found here:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/economic-wellbeing-strategy
The detailed delivery plan for the strategy is set out in the Economic Renewal
Plan, which can be found here:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/economic-renewal-plan
21. The council is committed to community wealth building and measures which
support the local economy and businesses, including looking to introduce local
spend targets. Work will also be supported to ensure that equalities and other
data is captured, for example on those businesses bidding for and successful in
winning council contracts, to support decision making.
Equalities, Health and Community Impact
22. The council must have due regard to equality issues and community impact under
its Public Sector Equality Duty. Southwark’s Framework for Equality policy sets
out how equality and human rights considerations will be embedded into our
policies on procurement and commissioning. All Gateway 0 strategic assessments
and Gateway 1 reports setting out the procurement strategy, must show that all
relevant equality issues and obligations are taken into account and planned
throughout both the procurement process and in the delivery of those functions on
behalf of the council. Equality, health and socio-economic considerations are all
covered within the Southwark Framework for Equality.
Workforce Issues
23. The council expects our suppliers to have good employment practices. This is
important because workers who are valued and fairly treated are more likely to
deliver the high quality and value for money service that our residents need and
expect. It is also part of the council’s broader commitment to promoting good work

7

59

and fair pay for all workers, recognising the fundamental impact employment
quality has on people’s wellbeing and life chances.
24. Where the council renews contracts or outsources contracts to the private or
voluntary sector the following workforce issues must be considered and applied on
a case by case basis as allowed by EU procurement, local government and other
relevant legislation and as provided by relevant council policy.
25. The elements to be covered in this are not intended to be complete but will include
the following:

Payment of the London Living Wage as set by the Living Wage Foundation
(see further information below)

Pension provision

The transfer and treatment of staff under TUPE

Ensuring all employees have a written statement of their pay and conditions

Terms and conditions including sick pay, holiday pay and provision of
equipment

Trade Union Recognition (see further information below)

Modern Slavery (see further information below)

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (see further information below)

Gender Pay Gap (see further information below)

Black Asian and Minority Ethnic Pay Gap (see further information below)

The requirement for an offer of guaranteed hours that reflect an employee’s
normal working patterns and with no harmful short or zero hour contracts
that are detrimental to the employees affected

Adequate training and development for employees that equips them with
the skills and expertise needed to deliver the service; including clear
information on their right to request time off for training or study
26. For areas covered by legislative requirements, such as modern slavery and the
gender pay gap, the council will expect suppliers and their supply chains to fully
comply with their lawful obligations and provide any information as to their current
status but will potentially ask for action plans around undertaking any changes to
address issues where legislation does not directly apply.
Health & Safety and Wellbeing
27. Health and Safety minimum requirements, where set out in legislation are required
to be followed by all contractors and those in their supply chain. Going above and
beyond this is encouraged where it is best practice, especially in relation to
ensuring quality welfare facilities that are fit for purpose.
28. Where pieces of legislation for particular industries or types of contract, such as
the Construction Design and Management Regulation of 2015 are in place, these
must also be followed by directly employed organisations and their supply chains.
29. The council has codes of practice relating to specific circumstances, including but
not limited to, the use of scaffolding, working with asbestos, working from heights

8

60

and working in occupied premises that will be included in contracts involving these
for the contractor and their supply chain.
30. All organisations are encouraged to support a healthy workforce by signing up to
The London Healthy Workplace Award, details of which can be found at:
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/health/london-healthy-workplace-award
31. Information from the council for the application process and support can be found
at:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/for-thepublic/healthy-workplaces
32. The Women’s Safety Charter was developed by the council in response to the
recognition of the serious nature of and need to address harassment in bars and
nightclubs. Contractors who operate in these industries would be expected to sign
up to the Charter. Full information and details of the code can be found at:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/community-safety/let-s-talk-about-women-ssafety
Violence at Work Charter
33. The council is committed to ensuring that staff providing contracts on our behalf
should receive protection from violence in the workplace and support if they are
subjected to violence in the course of their work. The council approved the ‘End
Violence at Work Charter’ and the award of new contracts will then be dependent
on a commitment by contractors to do the same. The Unison ‘End Violence at
Work Charter’ can be found at
https://www.unison.org.uk/content/uploads/2018/04/24948.pdf
34. In addition our expectation is that all contractors should have a clear policy on a
zero-tolerance approach to all forms of discrimination, harassment and bullying at
work.
London Living Wage
35. Southwark Council became an accredited London Living Wage employer in
November 2012. There is a presumption that all contracts for the provision of
services or works will include the payment of at least the current Living Wage (LW),
as set annually by the Living Wage Foundation, to all relevant staff working directly
on the contract in question. This means that pay should be at or above the London
Living Wage for contracts performed on council premises or in the Greater London
area and at or above the real UK Living Wage for contracts performed outside
London.
36. In the planning of all contracts, the appropriateness and best value / cost
implications of including the LW must be considered on a case-by-case basis,
recorded in writing, and set out in any required Gateway 1 Report. Where LW is

9

61

not appropriate it must not be included in the contract and detailed reasons for this
should be set out in the Gateway 1 report.
37. Where LW is included, gateway reports and contract documents must set out how
the requirement for LW will be evaluated and how the payment of LW and cost
implications will be monitored.
38. Full details about the London Living Wage are available at:
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/
Prompt Payment
39. The council pays all its undisputed invoices in a prompt manner and expects in its
standard terms and conditions of contract, that organisations and their supply chain
also pay their contracts promptly. Details of the prompt payment requirements will
be set out in tender documents.
Consideration of Trade Union Recognition
40. We expect our suppliers to recognise and respect the rights of their employees to
associate freely and to organise and bargain collectively in accordance with the
local laws relevant to their employment.
41. We believe that employers who formally recognise trade unions are more likely to
take a responsible approach to workforce consultation and planning. We therefore
believe that public service contractors should recognise trade unions where there
is an active membership and trade union representatives within the workforce.
Organisations will be requested to commit to trade union recognition or a timetable
to work towards recognition where this does not already exist.
42. We will work to ensure that early consultation with trade unions is undertaken
before the possible outsourcing of any service currently delivered in-house.
Blacklisting
43. Blacklisting is where employers and recruiters discriminate against individuals
based upon trade union membership or activity. This is prohibited by law. All
relevant tenders shall include relevant questions relating to any prior blacklisting
activity or self-cleansing activity related to this and shall exclude any organisation
that cannot satisfy the council’s commitment to only doing business with suppliers
who meet minimum statutory and ethical standards, in line with best procurement
practice. Contracts for public works will include provisions to provide for the
termination of the contract if the provider is proved to engage in blacklisting
activities during the course of that contract.
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
44. The council has an obligation to act in accordance with the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED). It will ensure that best practice is followed in taking equality

10

62

requirements into account when preparing and undertaking procurement activities
in line with its policies and procedures.
45. The council is aware of the important role that it plays in ensuring that Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion are delivered through all parts of its policies and contracts,
including procurement. Processes to ensure that the outcome of reports such as
Southwark Stands Together will be incorporated into guidance for procurement.
46. The council will explore how, through use of equalities and other data to be
captured, it can best enable Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic and smaller local
organisations to participate in procurement opportunities.
Gender pay gap
47. Organisations with 250+ employees are required to publish their gender pay gap.
The council is committed to seeing the gender pay gap decrease and will therefore
request all contractors with 50+ employees commit to publishing their gender pay
gap. Contractors with 250+ employees will be required to publish their gap and the
council will request this is accompanied by an annual plan that sets out their plans
to reduce any gap.
Black Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap
48. The council is committed to seeing the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap
decrease and will therefore request all contractors with 50+ employees commit to
publishing their Black Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap. Contractors with 250+
employees will be asked to publish their gap and the council will request this is
accompanied by an annual plan that sets out their strategies to reduce any gap.
Good Work Standard
49. The council is committed as part of its Fairer Future Commitments (Theme 4 - A
full employment borough) to comply with the Mayor’s Good Work Standard that
confirms we will only work with organisations that have good employment
practices. The London-wide standard from the Greater London Authority (GLA) has
been launched and the first level captures areas of legislative compliance as well
as requirements beyond statutory employment practices. The council will expect
all contracting organisations to meet the requirements of at least the first
(Foundation) level of the standard. Organisations are encouraged to consider
accreditation to higher levels of the Good Work Standard.
50. The link to the Mayor’s Good Word Standard with its online appraisal is available
here:
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-economy/supportingbusiness/good-work-standard-gws-0

11

63

Southwark Ethical Care Charter (SECC)
51. The Southwark Ethical Care Charter relates to the standards that the council
expects from its care providers in relation to payment for travel and training etc.
This reflects the particular challenges in relation to delivering social care to our
residents and ensuring that quality standards and fair practice are in place where
these are delivered by partner organisations. A copy of the Southwark Ethical Care
Charter can be found at:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s52528/Appendix%201%20Sou
thwark%20Ethical%20Care%20Charter.pdf
Modern Slavery
52. We have a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery and we are committed to
acting ethically and with integrity in all our business dealings and relationships and
to implementing and enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure modern
slavery is not taking place anywhere in our own business or in any of our supply
chains. Our full statement on Modern Slavery can be read here.
53. Councils have an important role to play in ensuring their contracts and supplies
don’t contribute to modern day slavery and exploitation. We expect the same high
standards from all of our contractors, suppliers and other business partners, and
as part of our contracting processes, we include specific prohibitions against the
use of forced, compulsory or trafficked labour, or anyone held in slavery or
servitude, whether adults or children, and we expect that our suppliers will hold
their own suppliers to the same high standards.
54. The council has a whistleblowing policy which enables and obliges our staff to
immediately report a breach of our Modern Slavery policy. All organisations and
those in their supply chains also have access to this and should use it if they have
any concerns or issues that they wish to report.
55. The council is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human
trafficking in our supply chains or in any part of our operations and we require our
suppliers to do the same. We believe that suppliers have a key role to play in
combating these crimes and that all of the suppliers we work with must take all
possible steps to ensure that human trafficking and modern slavery are not taking
place in any of their supply chains or their own operations. We will not maintain
relationships with suppliers where it is confirmed that they have been involved in
human trafficking or modern slavery, and confirm this is a material consideration in
selecting and evaluating our new and existing supplier relationships. We have
signed up to the Co-operative Party's Charter Against Modern Slavery:
https://party.coop/local/councillors/modern-slavery-charter/#intro
Social Value
56. The council seeks to get the ‘most’ value of its spend with external organisations
through considering and seeking to improve the economic, social and environmental

12

64

well-being benefiting the local area and its residents that is linked to the contractual
spend. This has been termed ‘social value’.
57. The council has an obligation under the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 to
consider what social value could be obtained during a procurement process for all
service contracts that are subject to the Public Contract Regulations 2015. The Act
offers an important opportunity to achieve more from the council’s spending on
services. Southwark Council will go beyond the narrow focus of the legislation and
consider what social value can be delivered during the development of all
procurement strategies (Gateway 1 reports).
58. When considering the additional benefits and social value to be delivered, this must
support the social, economic or environmental wellbeing of Southwark and its
residents and specifically support the delivery of the council’s Fairer Future
Commitments.
59. Key areas of social value commitments include:

Apprenticeships and paid internships

Job creation and local economy

Local employment opportunities

Work placement opportunities

Payment of London Living Wage where appropriate

Environmental and sustainability considerations

Health and wellbeing considerations
60. In addition to the core quality and cost elements to deliver the tender itself, a clearly
methodology for evaluating any social value elements during the procurement
process.
61. For all contracts over £100k in value, social value should be considered for inclusion
and where applicable, used as part of the evaluation methodology for the tender
award. Evaluation criteria should be assessed on a case-by-case basis and the
weightings should therefore reflect the relative importance of the social value element
to the subject matter of the contract and should be proportional to this. It is however
advised that this element be allocated at least 15% of the available evaluation marks.
62. For all contracts over £1m in value, the expectation will be that where practical at
least one apprenticeship will be provided per £1m of contract value. These are aims
and when they are not possible this should be noted in the Gateway 1 report but other
social value options should still be considered.
63. All apprenticeships should be of high quality and in line with the aims set out in the
council’s Economic Wellbeing and Skills Strategies:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/economic-wellbeing-strategy
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/skills-strategy
64. The achievement of social value commitments from proposed successful tenderers
should be set out in the contract award recommendation (Gateway 2 report).

13

65

These commitments should form part of the contract and key performance
indicators and be monitored and reported on as part of best practice contract
management, as well as in performance reports to departmental and corporate
contract review boards as required.
Southwark Construction Charter
65. The council’s capital programme is worth £1bn over the next ten years. It includes
commitments to build schools, leisure centres and a huge number of new homes
including the commitment to deliver 11,000 new council homes by 2043.
66. The council supports the Unite Construction Charter which it directs contractors
working on Southwark Council construction contracts to review to support ethical
employment practices on Southwark construction sites.
A Greener Borough
67. The council has declared a climate change emergency and is committed to working
to reduce the negative impacts and externalities that the delivery of its services
and contracts has on residents and Southwark’s environment. These range from
those set out in law, such as London’s Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ) and aiming
for low or zero emission vehicles, to the council’s commitments on carbon
reduction and the use of single use plastics. The council will work with suppliers to
ensure that its commitment to making the commitments in relation to the Climate
Change Strategy are realised, including for carbon neutrality to be ireflected
wherever possible in contracts entered into. The council’s Climate Change
Strategy can be found at:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-StrategyJuly-2021-.pdf
68. Procurement must be compatible with our commitment to supporting making a
greener borough, including reducing air pollution and factors that support the
intention to be a carbon neutral council by 2030. Work to remove single use
plastics from our operational estate is part of the single use plastics strategy.
Consideration should be given to using sustainable materials and methods
wherever appropriate and note of new legislation and more environmentally
friendly products and services should be made.
69. Gateway 1 reports should set out clearly what can be considered, potential costs
and how any negative impacts can be reduced and how these will be evaluated
during the procurement process.
70. With the specific aim to ensure safety for road users, suppliers are asked, where it
is appropriate with the use of vehicles, to:

Comply with the London Cycling Campaign’s Safer Lorries, Safer Cycling
Pledge, details of which are available at:
https://lcc.org.uk/pages/safer-lorries-pledge

14

66



Meet the requirements of Fleet Operator’s Recognition Scheme. More
details of this scheme are available at: https://www.fors-online.org.uk/cms/

Fairtrade
71. The council wishes to encourage contractors, suppliers and service providers
engaged to work for the council to show a commitment to Fairtrade. The council is
committed to Southwark achieving and maintaining “Fairtrade Borough” status by
meeting the five goals necessary to become a designated Fairtrade Borough.
Further information on Fairtrade can be found at:
http://www.fairtrade.org.uk
Freedom of Information
72. It is important to note that information supplied to the council during the tender and
evaluation process may be available to the public under the terms of the Freedom
of Information Act 2000 (FOIA), the Environmental Information Regulations 2004
(EIR) and other legislation providing a statutory right of access to information. The
council’s presumption is that information should be released unless it falls within
the scope of an appropriate exemption. Whilst the council will take into account
the position of the parties in question, it is ultimately the responsibility of the council
to decide what information should or should not be released. This includes any
information subsequently included in the contract.
Data Protection
73. All contracted organisations shall register with the Information Commissioner’s
Office where they fulfil the criteria laid out under the terms of the Data Protection
Act 2018. This does not imply that any data processing organisation is the data
controller of the information defined within the contractual agreement. All
organisations are required to name an individual responsible for compliance in
relation to the Data Protection Act within that organisation. All organisations are to
abide by the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR). Further information is available from the Information Commissioner’s
Office:
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/data-protection-act-2018/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protectionregulationgdpr/
74. Where personal information is to be shared with the contracted organisations this
shall only be done so securely and incorporating (where appropriate) an
information sharing agreement.

15

67

Staff Procurement and Contract Management Skills and Training
75. In order to deliver the FFPF, the council will continue to develop the skills of staff,
including:

promoting staff competencies in procurement, commissioning and
contract management

ensuring that all procurement activity is undertaken by informed managers
supported by professional procurement staff, providing specialist support
and advice

utilising e-procurement facilities to deliver process and procurement
savings

providing high quality guidance, support, documentation and awareness
sessions for service managers and their staff engaged in procurement
processes

supporting the achievement and then managing and monitoring the
delivery of social value, where appropriate from the procurement of
external contracts

improving contract management by continuously improving and learning
from experience of ‘relationship management’ and identifying tools, best
practice and training as appropriate.
Framework Agreements
76. Where the council uses Framework Agreements that have been put in place by
external parties to the Southwark Council, it should ensure that the requirements of
the FFPF can be integrated within the call off contract, which is managed, together
with the performance of the contract during the management of the contract.
Contracts Register
77. The council’s Contracts Register is published online for all live contracts over £5,000
in value in line with the Local Government Transparency Code 2015:
https://procontract.due-north.com/ContractsRegister/Index?p=2241eb95-058ae511-80f7-000c29c9ba21&v=1
National Procurement Policy Statement
78. The government published the National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS) in
June 2021. This set out the need to include core strategic goals in consideration of
procurement proiects, as well as resourcing needs. It also introduced a requirement
to publish a pipeline of future potential procurements projects, at least 18 months in
advance but ideally 3-5 years ahead. These requirements will be incorporated within
procurement requirements such as Contract Standing Orders, as well as in
discussions with Anchor Institutions on the formative role that the council will take in
influencing and supporting with our partner public sector institutions in support of
smaller and local businesses:

16

68

Legislative Framework
79. The applicable legislation for this framework includes but is not limited to:

EU Directive on Public Procurement: Directive 2014/24/EU

Public Contract Regulations (2015 as amended)

Public Services (Social Values) Act 2012

Modern Slavery 2015

Equalities Act 2010

Employment Relations Act 1999 (Blacklists) Regulations 2010

Weblinks
The links within this document are set out below.

The Council’s Budget Book:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/key-documents/budgetbook


Borough Plan:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/fairer-future/council-plan



Contract Standing Orders:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=425



Economic Wellbeing Strategy:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/economic-wellbeing-strategy



Economic Renewal Plan:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/economic-renewal-plan



The London Healthy Workplace Award:
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/health/london-healthy-workplace-award
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/for-thepublic/healthy-workplaces



Women’s Safety Code:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/community-safety/let-s-talk-about-women-ssafety



Unison’s End Violence at Work Charter:
https://www.unison.org.uk/content/uploads/2018/04/24948.pdf



London Living Wage:
https://www.livingwage.org.uk/



Mayor’s Good Work Standard:

17

69

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-economy/supportingbusiness/good-work-standard-gws-0


Southwark Ethical Care Charter:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s52528/Appendix%201%20Sou
thwark%20Ethical%20Care%20Charter.pdf



Southwark’s Whistleblowing Policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/whistleblowing



Co-operative Party's Charter Against Modern Slavery:
https://party.coop/local/councillors/modern-slavery-charter/#intro



Economic Skills Strategy:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/skills-strategy



London Cycling Campaign’s Safer Lorries, Safer Cycling Pledge:
https://lcc.org.uk/pages/safer-lorries-pledge



Southwark Climate Change Strategy:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/48607/Climate-Change-StrategyJuly-2021-.pdf



Fleet Operator’s Recognition Scheme:
https://www.fors-online.org.uk/cms/



Fairtrade:
http://www.fairtrade.org.uk



Information Commissioner’s Office:
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/data-protection-act-2018/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protectionregulationgdpr/



Contracts Register:
https://procontract.due-north.com/ContractsRegister/Index?p=2241eb95-058ae511-80f7-000c29c9ba21&v=1



National Procurement Policy Statement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0521national-procurement-policy-statement

18

70

Version Control
Version

Summary

Date

Approval

1.

New Document

July 2019

Cabinet

2.

Minor & Consequential: Updates to
Mayor’s GWS, End Violence at
Work Charter; London Healthy
Workplace Award; Construction
Charter working pending approval.

October 2019

DFB / Cllr. Mills

3

ED&I and Economic Renewal Plan
Whistleblowing Policy update

January 2021

Cabinet

4

Update to Black Asian and Minority January 2022
Ethnic Pay Gap terminology
Climate Change Strategy
Updated Southwark Framework for
Equality
National
Procurement
Policy
Statement
Framework Agreements
Economic renewal and Community
Wealth Building with aims for EDI
for small local and Black, Asian and
Minority
Ethnic
businesses
(para.46)

Cabinet

19

71

Item No.
.

Classification:
Open

Agenda Item 8

Date:
1 February 2022

Meeting Name:
Education and Local
Economy Scrutiny
Commission

Report title:

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission Work Programme 2021-22

Ward(s) or groups
affected:

N/a

From:

Scrutiny Officer

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the education and local economy scrutiny commission note the work
programme as at 1 February 2022 attached as Appendix 1.

2.

That the education and local economy scrutiny commission consider the
addition of new items or allocation of previously identified items to specific
meeting dates of the commission.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3.

The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in
the council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules paragraph 5). The constitution states that:
Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will:
a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of any of the council’s functions
b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the
cabinet and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and
over time in areas covered by its terms of reference
c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its
policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas
d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and
performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and
1

72

targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions,
initiatives or projects and about their views on issues and proposals
affecting the area
e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its budget
and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues
f) make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council
assembly arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process
g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants
h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are
enhanced by collaborative working
i) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area
and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the scrutiny
committee and local people about their activities and performance
j) conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and
possible options
k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their consent)
l) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance
community participation in the scrutiny process and in the development
of policy options
m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months
4.

The work programme document lists those items which have been or are
to be considered in line with the commission’s terms of reference.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
5.

Set out in Appendix 1 (Work Programme) are the issues the education and
local economy scrutiny commission is due to consider in 2021-22.

6.

The work programme is a standing item on the education and local
economy scrutiny commission agenda and enables the commission to
consider, monitor and plan issues for consideration at each meeting.

2

73

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Background Papers
Education and Local
Economy Scrutiny
Commission agenda and
minutes

Held At
Southwark
Council Website

Contact
Amit Alva
Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk

Link:
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=550&Year=0

APPENDICES
No.
Appendix 1

Title
Work Programme 2021-22

AUDIT TRAIL
Lead Officer Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer
Report Author Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer
Version Final
Dated 24 January 2022
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
CABINET MEMBER
Officer Title
Comments Sought Comments Included
Director of Law and Governance
No
No
Strategic Director of
No
No
Finance and Governance
Cabinet Member
No
No
Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team
24 January 2022

3

Appendix 1
Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme – 2021-22

Meeting

Agenda items

Comment

Future of Children’s Education and Youth Provision
in Southwark
Youth New Deal and Youth Services Update

Presentation received by Eva Gomez, Head of
Culture.



SEND provision and review

Rescheduled for September 29 2021 meeting

Future of Work and Enterprise in Southwark
 Good People

Presentation received from Richard Tyrie, Good
People.



Social Investment Business Group



Overview of apprenticeships, internships and Briefing received from Councillor Jason Ochere,
Cabinet Member for Jobs, Business and Town
enterprise support – Cabinet Member
Centres.
Briefing

Presentation received from Genevieve Maitland
Hudson, Social Investment Business Group.

74

19 July 2021



Meeting

Agenda items

Comment

Follow up from 2020-21 Year


Southwark Equalities Framework – Cabinet
Report [13 July 2021]

Report noted by Commission.



Children’s Experience and Education during
Covid-19 Pandemic.

Report noted by Commission.



Revitalising Southwark’s High Streets and
Town Centres.

Report noted by Commission.

Future of Children’s Education and Youth Provision
in Southwark
Pupil Places: Looking at shortfalls in primary
pupil numbers across the borough

To receive a report from Director of Education. Nina
Dohel.



SEND Review – To receive evidence from
Cabinet Member and Officers

To hear from parents and teachers of the children
with special education needs and disabilities. To also
receive a presentation from Roger Lynch (SEND
operator and practitioner)

Future of Work and Enterprise in Southwark
 Adult retraining

16 November 2021



Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND)

To receive the Skills Strategy Delivery Plan.

To hear from Nicky, Parent and Chair of Southwark
Independent Voice, a parent-led volunteer
organisation working to share information and
resources to improve the life of individuals with
SEND living in Southwark.

75

29 September
2021



Meeting

Agenda items

Comment
To hear from Simon Eccles, Executive Head teacher,
Spa Education Trust. An introduction to Spa Schools
and its specialist services.
To receive a report from Yvonne Ely, Head of SEN &
Inclusion, Children’s and Adults’ Services on Special
Educational Needs and Disability:


Additional overview of SEND processes and
their complexities within Southwark



Provision for children with SEND, including
NHS community-based paediatric referrals



Overview of Southwark’s Local Offer

Interview with Shenice parent of child with SEND.

Officer response to SEND questions and Journey
map through SEND- Education and Health Care
Plan (EHCP)

To gain a understanding of SEND - EHCP processes
and also to review responses to questions arising
from report on SEND considered at 16 November
2021 commission meeting. Response from officersYvonne Ely, Head of SEN & Inclusion, Children’s and
Adults’ Services and Nina Dohel, Director of
Education.

Formulating and discussing recommendations for
SEND provisions in Southwark.

Commission members supported by Scrutiny Officer.

1 February 2022

76

SEND parent interview

Meeting

Agenda items

Comment

Follow up from 2020-21 Year


Exclusions and Alternative Provision –
Update on implementation of scrutiny
recommendations

To receive an update on previous Scrutiny
recommendations made to Cabinet



Procurement: Accessibility and Social Value
– Update on implementation of Scrutiny
Recommendations

To receive an update on previous Scrutiny
recommendations made to Cabinet

Outline report- SEND system and processes in
Southwark.

This report will be led by the Chair, Councillor Peter
Babudu supported by officers Yvonne Ely, Head of
SEN inclusion, Nina Dohel Director Education and
Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer.



Town Centre Action Plan (High Streets and
Town Centres)

To receive a report from Danny Edwards, Head of
Economy, Councillor Jason Ochere Cabinet member
for Jobs, Business and Town Centres

Cabinet Member Interview – Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and
Education
Finalisation of any scrutiny reviews if not concluded
earlier

Other areas requiring meeting scheduling
Cabinet Member interviews/ addresses

Reviews must be concluded by this date due to Local
Government Elections

77

8 March 2022

Councillor Jasmine Ali, Cabinet member
for Children, Young People and
Education.

Attendance date to be confirmed

78

79

80

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021-22
AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)
NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Fitzroy Williams Tel: 020 7525 7102

Name

Electronic Copy

No of
copies

Name
Aine Gallagher – Cabinet and Public
Affairs Manager

Members:
Joseph Brown – Senior Cabinet Officer
Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor William Houngbo
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Michael Situ

Paul Wendt, Liberal Democrat Group
Office
Pavle Popovic – Liberal Democrat Group
Office

Education Representatives
Martin Brecknell
Lynette Murphy O’Dwyer
Parent Governors
Marcin Jagodzinski
Mannah Kargbo
Reserves Members
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Humaira Ali
Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor James Coldwell
Councillor Sirajul Islam
Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor James McAsh

Dated: January 2022

No of
copies

